AGENDA
AUDIT & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD IN
ROOM #318 OF THE COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING
CARMEL, NEW YORK 10512

Members: Chairman Castellano, Legislators Sullivan & Jonke

Monday July 24, 2017
(Immediately Following Personnel Mtg. beginning at 5:30pm)

The meeting was called to order at 5:44p.m. by Chairman Castellano who requested
that Legislator Jonke lead in the Pledge of Allegiance. Upon roll call Legislator Jonke,
Legislator Sullivan, and Chairman Castellano were present.

Item #3 - Approval of Minutes — June 26, 2017
The minutes were approved as submitted.
Item #10 - Discussion/ Historic Courthouse Audio System Upgrade

Chairman Castellano made a motion to amend the agenda to address item #10 at this
time; Seconded by Legislator Sullivan. All in favor.

Director of IT/GIS Thomas Lannon stated the audio system in the Historic Courthouse
has failed. He stated it is a combined system that is also used with the Office of Courts
Administration to conduct regular court sessions in and has been failing for some time.
He stated about a month ago there was a lightning strike which fried about three (3)
pieces of equipment. He stated the equipment was old and there were many problems
with it, especially with the wiring. He stated the building is very old, as is the wiring
leading to the floor boxes where the microphones are plugged in. He stated a company
from Albany who is contracted to handle all audio/video matters in the County came to
look at the issue and it was decided to redo the boxes. He stated the boxes are
problematic because they are analog and the quote is for running new digital
equipment. He stated a “breakout box” would be installed, which is a digital line that will
not fail. He stated it is a versatile system that microphones can be plugged into or
sound can be played through and will last a long time. He stated the amplifier was not
affected by the lightning strike, therefore everything but the amplifier will be replaced.
He stated there is a good possibility that the cost of this will be offset by the Office of
Courts Administration.

Legislator LoBue suggested investing in lightning rods to avoid further lightning strikes.
Director Lannon stated he does not believe the building was hit. He stated the power

was blown in the Hamlet and caused the issue. He stated the equipment in the Historic
Courthouse is located in the attic, which is a small, hot space. He stated the new unit


Elizabeth.Green
Stamp


will be smaller and will not generate heat, nor will it be as susceptible to heat. He stated
some of the old equipment was plugged directly into the wall, while some of it was
plugged into a surge strip. He stated moving forward, everything will go through a
battery backup which will isolate it and not allow any strikes to come through.

Legislator LoBue questioned if insurance will cover any of the costs.

Director Lannon stated he spoke to Senior Deputy County Attorney for Risk &
Compliance Adrienne Lotto regarding insurance and she is looking into it. He added the
County has a very big deductible. He restated that the Office of Courts Administration
was contacted as well.

Legislator LoBue questioned if the new system will be wireless.

Director Lannon stated it will not be wireless. He stated one (1) wire will be run down
from the attic and it will be plugged into a breakout box. He stated the microphones will
then be plugged into the breakout box. He stated the digital system will provide control
of the volume as well.

Legislator LoBue questioned if the audio will be better with the new system. She stated
there are often complaints of not being able to hear well in the Historic Courthouse.
She stated it has been discussed in the past that the historic value and the architecture
of the Historic Courthouse makes it difficult to improve the audio.

Director Lannon stated the audio will be better, however the architecture of the building
may still stand in the way in regards to the shape of the room and limitations of where
speakers can be placed. He stated he believes it will sound much better. He stated this
system will allow for better control of balancing the microphones. He stated currently,
the wires are run under the floor and sometimes there is a humming sound through the
microphone, which should be eliminated through the use of the digital system. He
stated all of the existing plug-ins will remain because the court room must have the
access to each part of the room.

Legislator LoBue suggested also replacing the microphone that the public utilizes to
speak.

Director Lannon stated he will look into that. He stated any issues with the public
microphone could have been a byproduct of the system itself.

Legislator LoBue stated at the Full Legislative Meetings, when members of the public
speak at the microphone, the video camera is behind them; therefore the video shows
them from the back. She requested that the video camera be positioned to better
capture those who speak at the meetings. She stated seeing the side of the person as
opposed to their back would be more respectful.



Director Lannon stated the cameras can be placed wherever the Legislature would like.
He stated they are limited to the two (2) cameras. He stated discussions have been
had in the past regarding mounting permanent cameras in the Historic Courthouse.

Chairman Castellano suggested moving the podium and microphone. He stated in
order for this item to be reviewed at the Full Legislative Meeting a budgetary
amendment will need to be submitted.

Legislator LoBue questioned what the cost of this system is.

Chairman Castellano stated the cost is $22,541.69. He stated hopefully the Office of
Courts Administration will reimburse the County if not all, some of this expense.

Legislator Sullivan stating having a working audio system in the Historic Courthouse is
critical.

Chairman Castellano questioned how long the process would be of purchasing and
installing the equipment.

Director Lannon stated the company works for municipalities and they have scheduled
work in schools over the summer months. He stated they may not be able to begin until
the first or second week in September. He stated when they were here they rigged the
old system to work for the time being. He stated the sound will not be great, but it will
not be any worse than last month’s meeting. He stated this work should be complete by
the end of September.

Legislator LoBue stated if need be the Full Legislative Meeting could be held in the
TOPS Building.

Director Lannon stated he could check the audio in the Historic Courthouse prior to the
Full Legislative Meeting to ensure it will work.

Chairman Castellano made a motion to approve, in concept, the budgetary amendment
necessary for the audio system upgrade in the Historic Courthouse; Seconded by
Legislator Sullivan. All in favor.

Item #4 - 2016 Audit Report/ PFK O’Connor Davies, LLP
a. Correspondence/ Commissioner of Finance/ Audit Responses

Chairman Castellano made a motion to waive the rules and accept the additional,
Seconded by Legislator Jonke. All in favor.

Partners at PFK O’Connor Davies, LLP, Nicholas DeSantis and Allan Kassay were
introduced to the Committee.



Mr. DeSantis stated he and Mr. Kassay will be presenting the Comprehensive Annual
Finance Report (CAFR) for Putnam County for the year ended December 31, 2016.
(The 2016 CAFR is available on the Finance Department’s website.) He stated Putnam
County has been an ongoing participant in the Government Finance Officers
Association and its financial statements are annually evaluated at the completion of the
audit. He stated the Finance Department puts together information from the past 10
years. He referred to page xiv of the CAFR which is a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting, which speaks to the Commissioner of Finance and
his staff. He referred to page 30 of the CAFR which states that Putham County is the
primary government that is presented in the financial statements and the financial
statements also include the Putnam Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation. He
stated the fund categories are listed on page 32 of the CAFR and are: the General
Fund, which is the County’s primary operating fund; the Capital Projects Fund; the
Special Revenue Funds, which include the County Road Fund, Road Machinery Fund,
Transportation Fund, Special Purpose Fund, and the Debt Service Fund; and
Proprietary Funds. He drew the Committee’s attention to the Independent Auditors’
Report, which can be found two (2) pages after page xiv. He stated this report
describes what has been performed for the County of Putnam. He stated Mr. Kassay
will present details that occurred during 2016 insofar as comparing the results of certain
revenues, certain budget information, and the overall financial condition of Putnam
County as of December 31, 2016.

Mr. Kassay stated he prepared a handout primarily pertaining to the General Fund,
which he provided to the Committee. (This handout is attached to the minutes.) He stated
on page 4 of this handout a retrospective of the General Fund Balance is shown. He
explained the components of the fund balance: non-spendable, restricted, assigned,
and unassigned. He stated in 2016 about $6 million was used to balance the 2017
budget. He stated in 2015 about $7.7 million was used to balance the 2016 budget. He
stated fortunately, the full amount of the fund balance was not fully utilized, and was
actually added to.

Mr. DeSantis clarified that when the budget was adopted, money was appropriated from
the fund balance. He stated the full amount of the $7.7 million was not used in 2016.

Mr. Kassay reviewed the unassigned fund balance, which increased by 11% from 2015
to 2016. He stated the total fund balance increased by 7% from 2015 to 2016. He
stated page 5 of the handout shows a summary of the revenues and expenditures
contained in the budget. He stated total revenues in 2016 had a positive variance of
over $3 million as compared to the budgeted amount. He stated total expenditures in
2016 has a positive variance of $7.9 million as compared to the budgeted amount. He
stated the net change in fund balance on this page shows the prior year's
encumbrances and the amount appropriated from the 2015 budget to balance the 2016
budget. He stated this line has a positive variance of $11.1 million. He stated the end
of the year fund balance was about $37 million. He stated page 6 of the handout shows
a more detailed report of the revenues and he reviewed the categories of revenue. He
stated Non-Property Taxes had a positive variance of about $4.3 million, which was














































































